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Lac du Bonnet has always been a gateway to the wilderness. In 1899, a Manitoba Free
Press correspondent stood watching the sunset from the high bank of the Winnipeg River,
surrounded by poplar bush, and with “dense forest” to the north and south. Among the silence
and the solitude, the correspondent realized Lac du Bonnet was a “fit retreat for jaded spirits and
weary brains.”

D.A. Keizer, a Winnipeg civil engineer connected to the discovery of Lac du Bonnet, was
the first to market Lac du Bonnet as a summer resort in 1900. He placed advertisements in the
Winnipeg Tribune and Manitoba Free Press for reasonably priced lots with easy payment plans.?
By 1902, Keizer had designed plans for an entire subdivision located one mile south of the brick
plant.® These lots were largely unsuccessful, as was the concept of Lac du Bonnet as a summer
resort in its current form.

Lac du Bonnet was built for industry. Established in 1898 as part of the Lac du Bonnet
Mining, Developing and Manufacturing Company’s holdings, the community existed so
Winnipeg businessmen could capitalize on the area’s mineral and clay deposits, ample supply of
timber and water power potential. In 1901, the Canadian Pacific Railway spur line arrived from
Molson. The station was located across from the brick plant and sawmill where bricks, cordwood
and lumber had been stockpiled for years, awaiting the completed rail line for shipment to
Winnipeg.

Referred to as “the ultimate outpost of civilization,” Lac du Bonnet was a rough place on

the fringes of law and order, filled with “wandering workmen” from construction and labour

1 «“A New Manitoba Eldorado,” Manitoba Free Press (Winnipeg, MB), April 15, 1899.
2 “The New Summer Resort,” Winnipeg Tribune, Sept. 29, 1900.

“Reed Island Bay,” Manitoba Free Press, Oct. 9, 1900.

See also: Appendix A
% “Ho! For Lac du Bonnet,” Winnipeg Tribune, June 30, 1902.



camps.* Beginning in 1902 with the construction of Manitoba’s first year-round hydroelectric
generating station on the Pinawa Channel, Lac du Bonnet became a transportation hub,
facilitating construction of five hydroelectric generating stations and two company-owned rail
lines between 1902 and 1930, along with a number of logging and bush camps. The only
accommodations were the Woodbine Hotel, or J.D. McArthur’s 17-room boarding house.
Occasionally, rooms for rent became available.

Slowly, a community formed alongside the industry. Labourers continued to move through
with construction projects, though some stayed, taking up homesteads with their families in the
areas north and east of Lac du Bonnet. By 1910, the CPR operated scheduled trains that left
Winnipeg at 11:40 a.m. and 3:30 p.m., six days a week. ° Residents and visitors had to hike a
half mile or hire a horse and cutter to reach Lac du Bonnet. In 1914, the railway commission was
asked to move the train station closer to the village.® The request was denied.

By 1920, Lac du Bonnet was struggling. The sawmill had shutdown in 1918. In October
1919, J.D. McArthur advertised the sale of his Lac du Bonnet holdings: the general store,
sawmill, brick plant and 1,700 acres of farm land. No one was interested in the enterprise. The
brick plant closed a year later. ’

Seeing an opportunity, a group of local businessmen intended to put Lac du Bonnet
permanently on the map. As visitors flocked to Lake Winnipeg’s beaches and journeyed to
Northwestern Ontario’s Lake of the Woods, Lac du Bonnet became prime real estate for a unique

summer resort paradise and tourist haven.

4 Rupert Brooke, Letters from America, Chapter X.
5 “Canadian Pacific,” Winnipeg Tribune, January 31, 1910.
6 “Subway Rulings of Railway Commission,” Manitoba Free Press, June 27, 1914.
7 Aileen Oder, ed., Logs and Lines, 4.
“For Sale at Lac du Bonnet,” Manitoba Free Press, October 17, 1919.
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Lac du Bonnet’s first summer resort, Silver Lodge, opened in Riverland in 1921.
Advertised as “a home away from home” for “restful comfort,” the lodge estate had a main
building that accommodated a “recreation hall, dance pavilion and dining room,” and “ten small
bungalows,” varying in size from one to three rooms, tucked away in private spaces along the
riverbank. Each building offered scenic views. Rates were $2.50 per day, or $15 for the week.
Cheaper rates were available for June and September.®

Located on a point of the Winnipeg River, owner Nels Johnson promoted Silver Lodge to
the “nature enthusiast,” those who enjoyed “communion with purely natural beauty.” Nels’
brochures specifically warned society lovers against the lodge, despite the lodge’s “touch of

luxury.”®

Figure 1 Silver Lodge. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.

8 «Silver Lodge,” Manitoba Free Press, July 9, 1921.
Aileen Oder, Logs and Lines, 381.
N.E. Johnson, Silver Lodge.

® N.E. Johnson, Silver Lodge.



Nels’ wife, Christina, prepared home cooked meals for the guests. With inadequate
refrigeration, Christina struggled to plan meals when weather and road conditions greatly
affected the number of vacationers at any time. Located within easy access of local farms, “fresh
cream, milk, butter, eggs and other farm produce” was always available for use or sale to
visitors.*

Dances were held at Silver Lodge every Saturday throughout the 1920s and anyone who
could come across from Lac du Bonnet was always welcome. Nels and a neighbour, Pete
Lindgren, often provided musical entertainment. Other bands, like the Beausejour orchestra,
were brought in for special events.

Excursions to McArthur Falls were also popular with visitors. Advertisements stated the
scenery could “only be satisfactorily viewed from the river itself.” Guests of Silver Lodge were
picked up by motorboat and, within minutes, were in a place of untouched wilderness. The
riverbank varied from rock outcrops to thick forest and secluded pine-shaded sandy beaches,

though arrival at the falls was an “unequalled delight.”*?

——
McArthur Falls was a popular spot for vacationers and locals. Hans Johnson operated a

boat livery and repair shop where he rented motorboats or canoes, and guided visitors to scenic

places along the Winnipeg River.™® Les Shapland, the CPR Station Agent, operated sightseeing

houseboat tours on Saturdays and Sundays during the summer months. On holidays, the boat was

10 Aileen Oder, Logs and Lines, 381.
1 Ibid.
“Businessmen Unite to Repair Highway,” Winnipeg Tribune, July 17, 1925.
12 N.E. Johnson, Silver Lodge.
13 Lac du Bonnet Amateur Players, A Country Kid.
“H. Johnson,” Lac du Bonnet Times, May 20, 1922.



“filled to the gunnels.” On the top deck, a phonograph played and people danced. “Sandwiches,

cakes, pies and drinks” were served.'*

Figure 2 Shapland's houseboat. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.

Many summer visitors travelled to Lac du Bonnet by train and kept boats at the village
dock, built at the end of Third St. in 1920. These visitors set up tents along the east side of the
Winnipeg River in Riverland, most desired for its “beautiful sandy beaches, outcroppings of flat,
granite rocks and trees.” They moved their camp as they “searched for secluded locations” for
their summer homes.

Fishing also attracted people to Lac du Bonnet. They camped along the riverbank, or
rented cottages from summer residents. Sportsmen from Winnipeg fishing clubs were drawn to
the region for the river’s plentiful goldeye, pickerel and sturgeon. The Eaton’s Angling Club
rented a cabin from the Wood family for $45.00 each season. Other fisherman set up tents on the

property, or rented other cottages for $1.00 per day.!®

14 Aileen Oder, Logs and Lines, 236.
15 Ibid., 404.
16 |bid., 255.
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The Lac du Bonnet Community Club was the first organization designed to promote the
area. Formed in March 1921 with Dr. Taylor, Rudolph Robideaux, and Bob Emmett as part of
the executive, the Club offered improvement suggestions to the Municipal Council, though its
main objective was “to develop the tourist trade to Lac du Bonnet.”*’

On January 27, 1922, the first order of business for the newly elected board of Hans
Johnson, president, Frank Allard, vice-president, and Donald McCulloch, secretary-treasurer,
was to establish a “printed news to tell the people of Manitoba” about Lac du Bonnet,
showcasing “how pleasant it is for a summer resort.” Reeve Oscar Peterson and W.D. Halliday
approved the motion to actively advertise “Lac du Bonnet’s beauty.”'®

Two school teachers, Frank B. Fox of Red Deer, and Matthew J. Kavanagh of Brightstone,
formed a partnership to create a monthly newspaper, The Lac du Bonnet Times. At the Lac du
Bonnet Publishing Company office on Park Ave., Fox and Kavanagh, as associate editors,
gathered information on community news and events, then wrote and edited the articles. The
newspaper was printed by Reynolds Limited, 319 Elgin Ave., Winnipeg, and was distributed to
subscribers throughout Manitoba.'® Volume one of the Lac du Bonnet Times was released
February 17, 1922. The newspaper ran monthly until January 1923, for a total of ten volumes.
An entire page in each issue was dedicated to district news.

“The Wanderer’s Note Book™ was a three-part series in the August, September and

October editions of the Lac du Bonnet Times. The correspondent, either Fox or Kavanagh, wrote

these travel columns, describing in great detail the poplar forests of Red Deer, with “winding

17 «“Community Club Holds Its Monthly Meeting,” Lac du Bonnet Times, Feb. 17, 1922.

18 1hid.

19 Archives of Manitoba, Business Names Registration Files, Lac du Bonnet Publishing Co. / Lac du Bonnet Times.
“Organization Meeting of Teachers at Lac du Bonnet,” Lac du Bonnet Times, Feb. 17, 1922,



roads and paths” leading to homesteads, “patiently carved out of the wilderness” where “white-
washed houses show beautifully in the trees.”?°

Readers were then taken along for “A Day on the Lake.” Their journey began at the dock,
where Hans Johnson took the group out on one of his many boats. They passed “the pleasant
fields of Riverland,” went beneath the bridge, beyond “Silver Lodge with its flags flying” to a
“lovely sandy beach at Newcombe” where they had a picnic lunch. The afternoon was spent
exploring, either taking a boat to McArthur Falls, or staying on land to “visit the Newcombe
School” before returning to Lac du Bonnet.?!

The final column featured a tour of the Great Falls generating station construction site.
Upon arrival, the first thing to draw the correspondent’s eye away from construction was the
“beautiful border of flowers of every colour, with sunflowers standing like tall sentinels”
surrounding the camp boss’s office. An observation platform built on the riverbank allowed an
“extensive view” in any direction. Trainloads of rocks filled in sections of the dam. Indigenous
men cut wood in an area soon to be flooded. Beyond all this, “lovely cottages with screened
verandas, lights and water” to which he remarked how a “village has grown so quickly in this

once quiet spot.”?

ok

The Municipal Picnic held on July 1, 1922 was the first Dominion Day celebration held in
Lac du Bonnet and was a milestone event. The idea was first introduced in the summer of 1921
and by March 1922, planning was well underway. Initially, the wish was to bring the

municipality together. Plans quickly expanded as committees were formed to cover every aspect

20 “The Wanderer’s Note Book,” Lac du Bonnet Times, Aug. 15, 1922.

21 “The Wanderer’s Note Book,” Lac du Bonnet Times, Sept. 23, 1922.

22 “The Wanderer’s Note Book,” Lac du Bonnet Times, Oct. 26, 1922.
See also: Appendix B



of preparations. Details of the day were published in the Lac du Bonnet Times in the months
leading up to the event, promising a full day of sports and entertainment, including singing
competitions.

A scenic path was cleared along the riverbank with benches placed at strategic locations to
take advantage of the “beauty of the river.” At the municipal grounds behind the Park Avenue
schoolhouse, a refreshment booth and exhibition hall were built. Mr. Danzker brought in large
quantities of food and soft drinks. Friends and former residents from Winnipeg planned to make
the trip out on the special train.

Although not part of the official program, the arrival of Red Deer, Brightstone and
Landerville residents began the excitement of the day. Twenty horse teams, stretched out for
nearly half a mile, were decked out in the colours of the schools. Each horse was decorated with
rosettes, and handmade pennants flew from every wagon. At the centre of the procession, was a
“very large Union Jack on a high pole.” The children of Lac du Bonnet’s school were waiting to
welcome the visitors in front of McArthur’s Pioneer Store, where an archway over the main
street was covered in flags and messages of welcome.

The day’s festivities commenced at 11a.m. with a parade of children from all the district
schools. It started at McArthur’s store on Main Street, turned down the Esplanade, which offered
great views of the river, and headed to the municipal grounds near the schoolhouse, where the
day’s competitions began. Free lunch was available to all children in attendance. Academic
awards were handed out to the best student in each subject, and prizes were won for foot races,
long jump and baseball. The district tug-of-war and horse races drew large, excited crowds.

Discussion was already underway to make the municipal picnic an annual event, and

planning began in October for the following year. The organizers’ only regret from the inaugural



event was that the road had not been finished, which would have allowed personal vehicles and
busloads of visitors to join the holiday celebrations. 2

——

The matter of the “very inconvenient” train station was put before the Municipal Council
in June 1921 and the councillors intended to discuss the matter with the CPR.2* In the meantime,
construction progressed on a road network throughout the district.

By May 1922, the Municipal Council approved construction of a “public highway” that
branched off the Whitemouth-Beausejour Road at Buchan before following the rail line northeast
to Lac du Bonnet. Building contracts were granted to local men Fred Troughton, for Lac du
Bonnet to Milner, and John Bruneau, for Milner to Buchan. Throughout 1922, anyone travelling
to Lac du Bonnet by train watched the road progress week to week. By September 1922, only
seven miles of road remained to be built and by late fall, the road was passable for carriages and
cars.? The train was still the most reliable method of travelling to Lac du Bonnet, and in
December 1922, the Municipal Council put forward a petition, asking the CPR to run scheduled
trains at times more suitable to residents.?®

In August 1923, the secretary of the Manitoba Motor League came out to put up official
signs to “mark the new Winnipeg-Lac du Bonnet highway” as number 25 along the telegraph

poles. The seventy-mile road was gravel for “two-thirds of the way” and the rest was dirt. One

23 “Lac du Bonnet Municipal Picnic,” Lac du Bonnet Times, March 20, 1922,
“July First to be Celebrated in Fitting Manner,” Lac du Bonnet Times, April 21, 1922,
“July First to be Big Day in Lac du Bonnet,” Lac du Bonnet Times, May 20, 1922,
“Arrangements Complete for Big Picnic July 1%, Lac du Bonnet Times, June 17, 1922.
“July 1% Picnic Great Success,” Lac du Bonnet Times, Aug. 15, 1922.
“Lac du Bonnet Citizens Meet to Arrange Picnic,” Lac du Bonnet Times, Oct. 26, 1922.
24 Rural Municipality of Lac du Bonnet Council Meeting Minutes, June 7, 1921.
See also: Appendix C
25 “Public Notice,” Manitoba Free Press, April 29, 1922.
“New Road Ready Before November,” Lac du Bonnet Times, Sept. 23, 1922.
26 Rural Municipality of Lac du Bonnet Council Meeting Minutes, Dec 5, 1922,
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section of road between Beausejour and the Lac du Bonnet turnoff required horse teams to pull
“the cars some distance.” At another spot closer to the village, a spring-fed mud hole required
horses to get the cars through again.?’

With the road completed, the more adventurous locals purchased cars. The train was still a
lifeline for many in the community, though the road from the station to Lac du Bonnet was a
winding path with “hub-deep” mud ruts.?® The next venture in opening up the region to
automobiles began, led by Lac du Bonnet’s Board of Trade president, Oscar Peterson. The plan
was to alter the Winnipeg Electric Company’s tramway bridge over the Winnipeg River three
miles north of Lac du Bonnet, to allow for regular traffic. This would create access for isolated
settlers, and for the further development of mining areas near the Bird River.?®

William Childe, on behalf of the Lac du Bonnet Board of Trade, placed regular
advertisements in the Winnipeg Tribune and Manitoba Free Press throughout 1923, promoting
an economical summer resort with pine-scented breezes. The Board of Trade, whose objective
was to ensure “all visitors have a good time,” hosted a dance at Silver Lodge and picnic at Lac
du Bonnet, with a brass band playing at both events.*°

e

In June 1925, Lac du Bonnet businessmen William Childe, Donald McCulloch, Hans
Johnson, Alex Dancyt, Nels Johnson, Oscar Peterson and Joe Sparman, joined the movement to
“advertise Manitoba,” put forward by Winnipeg mayor, R.H. Webb. In an effort to attract

tourists from across Canada and the United States, an “auto tourist guide” was planned for wide

21 «A C. Emmett...” Winnipeg Tribune, Aug. 31, 1923.
Aileen Oder, Logs and Lines, 404.
28 Aileen Oder, Logs and Lines, 235.
29 “Lac du Bonnet People Favor Bridge Scheme,” Manitoba Free Press, Aug. 23, 1923.
30 “Lac du Bonnet,” Manitoba Free Press, July 13, 1923.
“Resignation of Reeve Accepted,” Winnipeg Tribune, July 16, 1923.
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circulation.®! They formed the Civic Service Bureau to represent Lac du Bonnet’s business
interests, and soon Beausejour followed their example. Secretary, William Childe, explained that
the Bureau’s directive was to “boost our district in a sane and reliable manner” while ensuring
“visitors and tourists are made welcome to the community.” *?

On Friday, July 10, 1925, William Childe hosted a “large number of visitors and residents”
at his First St. home in Lac du Bonnet to listen to a Winnipeg radio broadcast featuring an article
on Lac du Bonnet’s “possessions and future possibilities.” Throughout the rest of the summer
season, the Lac du Bonnet Service Bureau intended to do regular weekend reports on Winnipeg’s
CKY radio station, detailing highway conditions for anyone travelling to the area.*

One week later, on July 17, thirty-five volunteers, including “every businessman associated
with the [Civic Service Bureau from] Lac du Bonnet and Beausejour” worked on a section of
main highway route 25 damaged by recent rain. Mr. G.H. Blanchard, district engineer for the
Department of Public Works, provided four horse teams and wagons, and another horse team
with a grader. From early morning, through extreme afternoon heat, to late evening, seventy
loads of gravel were spread over a three mile stretch of road, getting it “in shape for the weekend

traffic.” At the end of the day, a carload of tourists declared the road in “first-class shape.”%*

31 “Lac du Bonnet Will Develop Tourist Traffic,” Winnipeg Tribune, June 26, 1925.
32 “Effort is Made to Boost East Manitoba Area,” Winnipeg Tribune, July 16, 1925.
33 “Businessmen Unite to Repair Highway,” Winnipeg Tribune, July 17, 1925.

34 Ibid.



Figure 3 Winnipeg-Lac du Bonnet Highway, approx. 2 miles east of Beausejour. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.

That same summer, the Northeastern Manitoba Development Bureau (an amalgamation of
the Lac du Bonnet and Beausejour Civic Service Bureaus, along with delegates from
Whitemouth) proposed a “scenic highway to take in a string of beautiful waterfalls and other
scenic splendor from Seven Sisters and Whitemouth Falls, via Lac du Bonnet to Fort
Alexander,” including the popular picnic spots of McArthur Falls, Silver Falls and Pine Falls,
among others, in the route. Only “two or three locations” required a combined seventeen miles of
road construction before this “scenic delight” could be complete.®®

William Childe also wrote two half-page promotional articles for the Manitoba Free Press
in August and September. The first detailed the route of the Trans-Canada Highway from
Beausejour to Whitemouth, then to Lac du Bonnet and around to Silver Lodge and the Riverland
and Pinawa Districts, comparing the scenery to the foothills of the Rocky Mountains. The second
article, titled “The Trail of Talking Waters,” showcased the many scenic falls of the Winnipeg
River. More than half of this article is dedicated to explaining the proposed route of a road to

connect these picturesque places. 3¢

% “Northeastern Manitoba Towns to Join Hands,” Winnipeg Tribune, July 22, 1925.
% William W. Childe, “The Trans-Canada Highway,” Manitoba Free Press, Aug. 29, 1925.
William W. Childe, “The Trail of Talking Waters,” Manitoba Free Press, Sept. 5, 1925.
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By November, the Development Bureau proposed a published “guidebook of the entire
district” to be released the following year. Maps, photographs and advertisements were being

collected and road signs were in the planning stages.®’
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Figure 4 Sign hand painted by William Childe. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.

The “District Guidebook to North-Eastern Manitoba” was published in 1926, with 10,000
copies being distributed throughout the province. The twenty-four page guidebook featured
sections dedicated to each community: Lac du Bonnet, Beausejour, Whitemouth, Garson,
Tyndall and Selkirk, with a short written description of the area and advertisements for local
businesses.*®

In response to this tireless promotion, there was considerable demand for cottage lots
throughout the region, particularly to the north and south of Lac du Bonnet. The Development
Bureau facilitated discussions between the newcomers and the farmers looking to sell riverfront

lots.®®

37 “Guidebook is Suggested for East Manitoba,” Winnipeg Tribune, Nov. 26, 1925.
38 North-Eastern Manitoba Development Bureau, District Guidebook to North-Eastern Manitoba.
39 “Guidebook for Eastern Part of Manitoba,” Winnipeg Tribune, March 11, 1926.
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By 1926, Joe Sparman opened the first garage in Lac du Bonnet, and a regular bus service
operated daily from Winnipeg with Stuart Bus Lines. The owner and driver, Mr. Stuart, took the
residents’ lists of “items needed from Eaton’s” and he’d make the purchases, bringing them on
the return journey.*°

That same year, the CPR finally relocated the train station to the northern edge of Lac du
Bonnet. To take advantage of this, Les Shapland built the Traveller’s Hotel across from the
station on the corner of Park Ave. The hotel had an attached restaurant and beer parlour. The
grand opening party was on New Year’s Eve 1927. Les’s wife, Lillian, became the first woman

in Manitoba to serve beer in the parlor, as the hotel was in her name. #

Figure 5 Travellers Hotel with Stuart Bus Lines parked in front. Lac du Bonnet District Museum.

*k*x

40 Aileen Oder, Logs and Lines, 241, 255.
41 |bid., 236.
“The Shaplands, Lac du Bonnet Residents for 36 Years...” Springfield Leader (Lac du Bonnet), Aug. 10, 1954.
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Davis Lodge was built in 1926 by Boston businessman, Howard Clark Davis, on the north
shore near the mouth of the Bird River. As chairman of Central Manitoba Mines, Davis travelled
throughout eastern Manitoba. On one pleasure trip to Lac du Bonnet, he discovered a secluded
bay with a sandy beach and wide expanse of grassland sloping gently towards the river, and
promptly purchased the property for a summer home for his family and friends.

Built entirely of logs, Davis Lodge had accommodation for sixteen guests, and each room
accessed a screened veranda, 180 feet long, to take in the view. The central living room, with
loungers and easy chairs, had a stone fireplace on each end wall. Powered by its own generator

and waterworks, Davis Lodge had electric lights, “shower baths,” and a fully-modern kitchen.*?

Figure 6 Davis Lodge. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.

*k*x

Les Shapland opened Holiday Beach in 1929, two miles north of Lac du Bonnet, across the

river from Silver Lodge. Newly built cottages on riverfront lots were available for sale or rent by

42 “Davis Lodge,” Manitoba Free Press, Aug. 14, 1926.
“Central Manitoba Mines is in Highly Satisfactory Condition,” Manitoba Free Press, June 1, 1928.
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the week, month or season. Known as one of the finest and safest beaches in the area, locals and

vacationers flocked to Holiday Beach to swim or attend the dance held each weekend. 4

Figure 7 Holiday Beach. Lac du Bonnet District Museum.

*k*

Lac du Bonnet’s efforts to attract holiday seekers throughout the 1920s laid the
groundwork for the next one hundred years of tourism advancements. The summer resorts
thrived throughout the next decades and the number of cottagers continued to rise each year,
boosting Lac du Bonnet’s economy. The airline industry introduced a whole new version of
tourism, with fly-out fishing trips to remote lakes. Together, they created the summer paradise

that Lac du Bonnet is today.

43 “Holiday Beach,” Manitoba Free Press, May 27, 1929.
Aileen Oder, Logs and Lines, 237.
Archives of Manitoba, Subdivision Plans, Shapland, L. (Lac du Bonnet) — Approved Plan.



Appendix A: Advertising Lac du Bonnet, 1900 — 1926
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Figure 11 Brochure. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.
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The Trans-Canada Highway

RS
BY WILLIAM CHILDE
Secretary Northeastern Manitoba Development Bureau

With practically only that terrl-
tary from Deaunejour to the lakes
still {0 be complated, the Truni-
Caneda highway is moving rapidly
nearer completin and  with the
d west l-mm.m

donde that this move wi
way towards welding & Lominton
wide friends amongyt &l Cana-
Aluns, of ull dolicfs pnd croads,

The stretch yel to he completed
between Heausclour and (hl' Ontario
boundary to Iha east wil prove to
e noe of tho Most heausiful szenis
tours TATouglout tire whois of the
western co

Leaving Whitemouth, \“lhaglix

e il f vorld 1aata of ol
e londor, viih N5 volling
bttt DUDRE
r, %o remin-
scencry 0f
$he downs of the Savr-y, and Kent-
jah  tountry of Old England, the
Joula Wil enter upnn i counliy ol
viegin, primeval heauty, @ veritadls
~anderlanyg of Jake am forcst seen-
that eznnot be compared op any
trer porion of the STeal American
continent.
v‘rm"s portion of 1he new highway
when "om,«l“ltd wiil wive the travel-
g camper i lung chaln of beauti-

lions, wiore tha temta can he
an lone as thoy

Contiruing, the road down te Las
dn Bonnet opers up on newly set-
Ued ogrlesliuml lands, and {hon &
glistening sight of the biua waterd
of the Winnipex rivar in xeen, pro-
vious Lo the entry inio the anagl:-

A*ha vlllage of Lac du Bomnet 18
altuated TIgED on the bamks of the
river, asd solhing much more can
a aaid of it, onlside the faet tist
aimost svory resident ia an ardent
bovster for the future development

the travellor panses
through  the  villgge aveliing
towards the Winnipeg river brldge
that again the eys 1z pleassd by
pretty scemery.

Crossing the river nridge on o
the island &t Riveriand, easy accesa
in made 10 Ploawa, the home of tns
Winnipeg Electric Rallway company,

vor Lodge, and numeraus campe |
ing spats,

But thase are not {he only camp-
Ing spota around the district, the
river ‘banks on both sides of thn
Winnipeg arp literally dotted wita
suitnble »pots for camp eltes.

This alatrict. though not on the
direct vouta of thn Trana.Canada
highway, 18 mentionsd hecmuse of

an
Era

diatriét from .the proposed route of

its close prozimity Lo (e hiFhWaY. | know It, as ope of the beauty spots of Manitnda.
cause of 113 splendld "2l | from the tourist camp at Lac du Bonnet.
highway Tunning inte the | Winnipeg river near Lac du Bonnet.

Eutwu-d from Winnipeg liex & country.concedsd to be by thdas who

Above i3 shown a scene

At the bottom s a view of the

Figure 15 Manitoba Free Press, Aug. 29, 1925
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The Trail of the Talking 'Waters! : =i

BY WILLIAM W. CHILDE

1l WHERE THE TUMBLING WATERS.ROAR k|

Developmont Bureau.

Secratary of the Northesstern Manitoba

Tha heading of thin articie, with its
romuntlc sounding, ix nb mora Yo-
mantic and plctureaqua than the teail

is already eaiahlished
vight innortheast Manitoba, and liox
but a littls over %0 miles from Win-

onrs.
The trail of iba Taiking Waters
jona alongalds the \Winnipew river

which prases in
close prozimity 1o a chaln of water-
falla and rapidas covering the whoie of
sinnce. Hance the trall derfves
titia from the Indians' apt des-

waiers

Refors me. at
thia article, I has
falls, one of the many in Lhis chain
besuty, and (ta wild rugged-

time of writi

has an outatanding a
| that 30 ce could resist if o
pm,nu beAL o, explore these won-
ertul zfia of & master haad,
avn sean othee views of L
of'the faia on s wender ¢l

ralls, th

1
cription of lhe water€alla—as taliing | 1

trail such heauty spots as Beunean's
Dbay, Canong’s point and Reod iatand
2y can be taken i, all Of whieh are
notable #pots for s

at the atately silence and

among;
fude alons the beamtitul wm'“‘}

Tound this viclnitv the riv
begins 16 broaden out. Again at the
mouth of the beautiful Lac du Bonpet
Mxelf.

But fonr miles further down the
pike, when this new link-up 18 made.
urist will be &bls 10 maks i
one-oft 1a the two SMEAFhur. falls

cing tho start off on the al-
al

Fower company, where iho
atatety ot
rush sleng In ail its spleador on ity

way to it3 nel r fals, Siiver and
ine, on the way to Fort Alexander
Wwad Lake Winnipes, the great inland

freals waier saa Of B sortire Masiiobx,
These falls are now up to
wora of tue pleatitul  and
trlo power for which the
Maniteba fs becoming. s0

ireat tally whore we conie
at the present time uRo the
nt of tho alreasy eatublinhied

e |

Figure 16 Manitoba Free Press, Sept. 5, 1925
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Figure 14 Guidebook. Lac du Bonnet
District Museum Archives.



Appendix B: The Lac du Bonnet Times, 1922

T ac Du Bonnet Times

ISSUED MONTHLY WITH THE OBJECT OF FOR-
WARDING THE INTERESTS OF THE MUNICIPALITY

VOL. 1

LAC DU BONNET _

FEB. 17th, 1922

Municipal Council Meets at Lac Du Bonnet

leely'

A lively di i ked when

Vi

Prom‘loeo Money

Feb. 7th The Lac du Bonnet Municipal
Cou Lac du Bonne February

Reeve Peterson
Troughton, Bergstrom, Angman and Billing
were in their places.

After opening remarks by Reeve Peterson,
the Council to business. They
are continuing their road policy, the main
feature of which is to provide main trunk
lines connecting the centre of the muni-
cipality, Lac du Bonnet, with the outlying

~ parts. Work will be pu%hed therefore, on
the Brightstone-Lac du Bonnet road as soon
as climatic conditions allow. This road
shortens the distance for the large farming
districts of Red Reer and by

rcpresenlahve.s from out of town pointed out
to the Council the need of a road in their
districts. They had statements to show how

little haa been done, and requested” informa-
ettt v

ton on
The Council w;m stirred out of its usual calm,
and endeavored to give the information asked
for. They also promised consideration of the
roads spoken of, but kept to their

policy of trunk roads first.

Among the speakers was Mr. Harry Holyk,
who came with his speech prepared and well
in hand.

A motion was passed, relating to a
gelmon from the Bnghtatonc Athletu Club,
hey requested a grant of $50 for the con-
struction of a hall, which would serve as a
ity centre for Br and Re

four miles.

with their J)ohcy for encouraging
tourist trade to Lac Bonnet, thus giving | was
the farmers a greater market for farm pro-
duce, is the automobile road connecting Lac
du Bonnet and Winnipeg. Already part of
this road is staked out. As was pointed out,

ithin a few hours ride b;

Ree\-e Peterson wm able to show that the
Gavemment was behind the road é)ohcy by
saying that a grant was promised by the
provincial authoritics to help the muni-
cipality.

A warm discussion followed. Eventu-

ally, hav g talked the matter over, the grant

This step is not unique, as it is

now. 'he semcd policy of our older muni-

cipalities to ald in anything that tends to the
public

1'REES ON PRAIRIE PARM?

ousand dollars more than the bare one.
This is not only on the score of sentiment
and comfort, but use of the increased
financial return.—Norman M. Ross,
Forest Nursery, Indian Head, Sask.

Community Club Holds
Its llonthly Meeting

Lac du Bonnet—The Lac du Bonnet
its monthl i

Communit ‘g' Club he

on Feb. 7th, at9 p.m. in the Mu.nmpul Hall.

This was the second mee he year, for

the Club mized in Marcl 1921
Among" those who were active in the

original or%nmtmn were Dr. Taylor, pres:-

gent Mr. bideux, vice-president, and Mr.

s of

gi ractical suggesti
and to develop the tourist trude to Lac du
Bonnet.

The first meeting of 1922 was held Jan. 27.
The following officers were elected: President,
H. Johnson; vice-| “ﬂru\denr. Mr. Allard; sec.-
treas., D. MacCulluch

‘After the election of officers, attention was
dmwn to the need of printed news to tell the

of Manitoba how beautiful is Lac du
mnet. and how pleasant it is for a summer
On the motion of Reeve Peterson,
neconded by W. D. Halliday, it was decided
to take active steps to give publicity to Lac
du Bonnet's beauty.

Further discussion took place on the need
of more working together with the F:

Labor organizations in ﬂuz country. No
action was taken, but it seemed the opinion

of many that such a spirit would be good for C

the municipality.
The second moeung of 1922 was held on
Saturday evening, Feb. 4th. . The President,

Mr. H. Johnson, in the chair. As it was the
same day as the

as the momhly meetmg of

Tmchm Association, a large contingent was

Afn-r readin, the minutes of the fast meet-
ing, the Pre it called on Inspecmr West.
mgweatalkupanthcacllooll of the mi
cipality. This he did in a clear and in: i
. He the schools
satisfe

Fol Ihwinu came business before
Club. Ahvelyd-lm ssion took lweoverzhe
n%pom tment of an Eucnuve Committee,
work is to suggest improvements that

The
uni- | paring of work in differen
auxmgt (hw

Organization Meeting of
Teachers in Lac DuBonnet

Lac du Bonnet.—'l‘bc municipal town took
on
when the teachers of Lac du Bonnet Muni-
cipality gathered in the local School Tiouse,
lves into an association [nr

cducanon of the youth uncr their care.

‘The day was stormy in the morning, yet
some of the teachers came in from 'quite long
(hstam-es. dﬂvmg and on foot. Punctually at

the meeting was called to order in the
l\rpﬂ room of the Lac du Bonnet School

Kavanagh, of the Brightstone School,
was elected cl mrman He outlined the ob-
jects of the Associ , and the teachers
settled down to busingss. ~Resolutions were
passed, stating the object of the Association,
scnlmg the number of officers, and times and

d | place of meeting. Then followed the election

of officers. They were as follows:

Hon. President, Mr. A. C. West, lpspector
of Schools; President, Mr M.
Brightstone: " Vice-Preside
Buchan; Sccretary-’ Trem, sts \thenzie,
Lac du Bonnet.

Mr. West spoke of a_proposed idea f
municipal pxc ic, to be held at the end o[ [hc

hich hools

press their hearty approva f a mu
picnic, to be held on July 1st, when it does
not interfere with Sunday obscrvance, in such

. | case the most suitable day at that scason.

Following this came a discussion, intro-
rs. [Tamilton, principal of Lac du

hool, n municipal examinations

for the lower grades, thus standardizing the
classes, and giving the grading from clsse to
a value a-rmlnr to the upper classes.

to an intercsting com-
t schools. The

4 ) ;
Amg the  tea grﬁe
d Stewart, uwnhe hool ;. Mr,

ones,
l.andervme. Mr. Lysacki, Riverland; Mc. F.

B. Fox, Red Deer: M\ 7. Kavanagh
B Mie Hami

low ated

Reeve Peterson, were elected Mr Gauth
Mr. J. H. Ellnrmana.nd Mr. W. D. Halhday

Ree;vle Peutgger:::d then addressed thebn Mba
in, e st ter co-operati
tvgwn the teachers and the Munici
Messrs, Kavanagh and Fox stat
of the lcachenn, that while they werc ghd n}

ac du Bonn

the adjournment the tenchzrs
had leisure to compare notes, and pic
pointers from the excellent color work du-
played by Mrs. Hamilton's pupils in pieces
of their work seen about the room.

keen as was their enthusiasm,

f t were not sorry when summons came to

ake tead‘y for the dmner m’ved at the home =
, of Lac du Bonnet, an

inform the
the Council Ycoﬁa( they felt that it was the
duty of the Councillors to come among the
and give to them the facts and figures
that they alone held. They offered them co-
operation in this respect.
On motion, the meeting adj ourned until
the 3rd Saturday in March, at

aceount of which appears on another page.
As they left the scl

the afternoon was most profitably

was filled with a desire to do his or

build up a really useful organization.
WOOD IN DEMAND

Figure 17 Lac du Bonnet Times, Volume One, Page One

1 house each felt that
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Appendix C: Additional Photographs
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Figure 23 Water Power Branch map, 1913. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives
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Figure 24 The J.D. McArthur Pioneer Store, circa 1915. With horse and cutter. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.

Figure 25 Third Street, Lac du Bonnet, 1924. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.
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Figure 26 A sightseeing trip, circa 1920s. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives

Figure 27 A picnic on the Winnipeg River, 1928. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives
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Figure 28 Hans Johnson's charter boats at Lac du Bonnet. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.

Figure 29 Lac du Bonnet dock, circa 1920. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.
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Figure 30 Camping at the Lac du Bonnet Narrows (Pickerel Point), 1925. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.

Figure 31 Camping at the Lac du Bonnet Narrows (Pickerel Point). Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.
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Figure 32 Rapids at the Lac du Bonnet Narrows (Pickerel Point). Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.

s

Figure 33 Honorable W.R. Clubb and John Keyale. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives
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Figure 34 Canoeing near Wendigo Island. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.

Figure 35 Bird River Falls, approx. 20 miles northeast of Lac du Bonnet. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.



Figure 36 The hazards of being a tourist. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives

Figure 37 The second CPR station, circa 1950. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.



Figure 38 Sailboat at Lac du Bonnet. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.

Figure 39 At Holiday Beach. Lac du Bonnet District Museum Archives.
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